BYLAWS OF HAMILTON PARK HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

ARTICLE I. GENERAL

Section 1 Name. The name of the corporation shall be HAMILTON PARK HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC (the "Association")

Section 2 Principal Office. The principal office of the Association shall be at 5911 Breckenridge Pkwy, Suite H, Tampa, Florida 33610, or such location as may be designated by the Association's Board of Directors All books and records of the Association shall be kept at its principal office

Section 3 <u>Definitions.</u> As used herein, the term corporation shall be synonymous with "Association" as defined in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (the "Declaration") of a residential subdivision to be known as Country Chase pursuant to a plat or plats to be recorded in the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida (the "Subdivision"), and, unless otherwise specified herein, all terms used herein shall be defined as set forth in such Declaration

ARTICLE II. DIRECTORS

Section 1 First Board of Directors.

A The Board of Directors shall initially be composed of three (3) Directors. The Declarant shall have the right to appoint all of the members of the Board of Directors until the Termination Date of the Class B membership described in Article V herein, at which time the Class A Members shall be entitled to elect two (2) members of the Board of Directors and the Declarant shall continue to be entitled to appoint at least one (1) member of the Board of Directors until such time as the Declarant holds less than five percent (5%) of the Lots for sale in the ordinary course of business in the Subdivision

B Within sixty (60) days after the Class A Members are entitled to elect one or more members of the Board of Directors, the Association shall call, and give not less than ten (10) days nor more than sixty (60) days notice of, a meeting of the Class A Members for this purpose Such meeting may be called and a notice given by any Class A Member if the Association fails to do so

C All Directors who are not subject to appointment by Declarant shall be elected by the Members Elections shall be by plurality vote

D Any Director appointed by the Declarant shall serve at the pleasure of the Declarant, and may be removed and substituted by Declarant, at its sole option and discretion

E At such time as the Class A Members of the Association are permitted to elect Directors, any Director elected by the Class A Members, may be removed from the Board, with or without cause, by majority vote of all of the Class A Members of the Association entitled to vote. In the event of death, resignation or removal of an elected Director, his successor shall be elected by the remaining Directors and shall serve the unexpired term of his predecessor.

The Board shall be composed of at least three (3) Section 2 Number and Term and no more than nine (9) Directors and the number of Directors for each year shall be the same as the number in the prior year unless the number has been increased or decreased by a vote of at least two-thirds (2/3) of all members of the Association, but in no event shall the Board be composed of less than three (3) Directors The term of each elected Director shall expire upon the election of his successor at the next succeeding annual meeting of Members Commencing with the first annual meeting that either follows or constitutes the "turnover" meeting, all Directors elected by the Members shall be elected on a staggered two (2) year term basis Accordingly, at such meeting, the one-half (½) of the elected Directors receiving the highest number of votes, and, in addition, if there are an odd number of Directors elected, the Director receiving the next highest number of votes, shall serve two (2) year terms and the other elected Directors shall serve one (1) year terms At each annual meeting of the Members thereafter, Directors shall be elected for two (2) year terms to fill the vacancy of those Directors whose terms are then expiring Elections shall be by plurality vote. In the event additional Directors are elected at any annual meeting to fill new directorships created by expansion of the Board, such Directors shall be elected, in the manner set forth above, for one (1) or two (2) year terms as may be appropriate to make even, or as nearly even as possible, the number of Directors serving one (1) and two (2) year terms Each elected Director shall serve until his respective successor has been duly elected and qualified, or until his earlier resignation, removal or death

Section 3 <u>Vacancy and Replacement.</u> If the office of any Director becomes vacant by reason of death, resignation, retirement, disqualification, removal from office or otherwise, a majority of the remaining Directors, though less than a quorum, at a special meeting of Directors duly called for this purpose, shall choose a successor or successors who shall hold office for the unexpired portion of the term of the vacated office. In the event there are no Directors remaining, the successor or successors shall, at a special meeting of the Members called for such purpose, be chosen by a plurality vote of all of the Class A Members of the Association entitled to vote. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Director appointed by the Declarant may be replaced solely by the Declarant

Section 4 Removal Any member of the Board of Directors (other than those appointed by the Declarant) may be recalled and removed from office with or without cause by a majority vote of the Class A Members of the Association entitled to vote A special meeting of the Members to recall a member or members of the Board of Directors may be called by ten percent (10%) of the Members giving notice of the meeting as required to for a meeting of

Members and the notice shall state the purpose of the meeting. The Directors need not be Members of the Association or residents of the State of Florida. If any Director who is also a Member, fails to pay any Assessment levied by the Board of Directors, whether a regular or special Assessment, within thirty (30) days after its due date, he shall automatically be removed as a Director and the remaining Directors shall select a successor to serve the unexpired portion of the term of said removed Director. The provisions of this Section shall not be applicable to Directors appointed by the Declarant. Declarant appointed Directors shall be removable with or without cause at the sole discretion of the Declarant.

Section 5 <u>Powers</u> The property and business of the Association shall be managed by the Board of Directors, which may exercise all corporate powers not specifically prohibited by statute, the Articles of Incorporation, or the Declaration The powers of the Board of Directors shall specifically include, but not be limited to, the following

A To purchase, accept, lease, or otherwise acquire title to, and to hold, mortgage, rent, sell or otherwise dispose of, any and all real or personal property related to the purposes or activities of the Association, to make, enter into, perform, and carry out contracts of every kind and nature with any person, firm, corporation, or association, and to do any other acts necessary or expedient for carrying on any of the activities of the Association and pursuing any of the objects and purposes set forth in the Governing Documents and not forbidden by the laws of the State of Florida

B To establish a budget and to fix assessments to be levied against all Lots which are subject to Assessment pursuant to the Declaration for the purpose of defraying the expenses and costs of effectuating the objects and purposes of the Association and to create reasonable reserves for such expenditures, including a reasonable contingency fund for the ensuing year and a reasonable annual reserve for anticipated major capital repairs, maintenance, improvements, and replacements

and unpaid Assessments or charges and to bring suit for the foreclosure of such liens or to otherwise enforce the collection of such Assessments and charges for the purpose of obtaining revenue in order to carry out the purposes and objectives of the Association

D To hold funds solely and exclusively for the benefit of the Members of the Association for the purposes set forth in the Governing Documents

E To adopt, promulgate, and enforce rules, regulations, bylaws, covenants, restrictions, and agreements in order to effectuate the purposes of which the Association is organized

F To delegate such of the powers of the Association as may be deemed to be in the Association's best interest by the Board of Directors

G To charge recipients of services rendered by the Association and users of property of the Association where such is deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors

OR BK 11551 PG 1543

- To pay all taxes and other charges or Assessments, if any, levied against property owned, leased, or used by the Association To enforce, by any and all lawful means, the provisions of the Governing Documents To do all things required by any Master Association hereafter established In general, to have all powers which may be conferred upon a corporation not for profit by the laws of the State of Florida, except as may otherwise be prohibited herein Compensation Neither Directors nor officers shall receive compensation Section 1 for their services as such Section 2 Meetings. The first and annual meeting of each Board of Directors newly elected by the Members shall be held immediately upon adjournment of the annual meeting of the Members, provided a quorum shall then be present, or as soon thereafter as may be practicable Special meetings of the Directors shall be held whenever called by the President or a majority of the Board The Secretary shall give notice of each special meeting either personally or by mail or telegram, at least three (3) days before the date of such meeting Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be open to all Members except for meetings between the Board of Directors and its attorney with respect to proposed or pending litigation where the contents of the discussion would otherwise be governed by the attorney-client privilege Except in cases of emergency, notices of such meetings shall be posted conspicuously on the Property at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of such meetings. In the alternative, if notice is not posted in a conspicuous place in the community, notice of each board meeting shall be mailed or delivered to each Member at least seven (7) days before the meeting, except in an emergency Notices for meetings of the Board of Directors at which Assessments will be levied shall state that Assessments will be considered and describe the nature of the Assessments A majority of the Board of Directors shall be necessary at all
 - meetings to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and the act of a majority present at any meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act of the Board of Directors. If a quorum shall not be present at the meeting, the Directors then present may adjourn the meeting until a quorum shall be present. A member of the Board of Directors may join by written concurrence in any specific action taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors but such concurrence may not be used for the purposes of establishing a quorum

Section 8 Order of Business. The order of business at all meetings of the Board of Directors shall be as follows

- A Roll call
- B Reading of minutes of the last meeting
- C Consideration of communications
- D Resignations and elections
- E Reports of officers and employees
- F Reports of committees
- G Unfinished business
- H Original resolutions and new business
- I Adjournment

Section 9 Accounting Records The Association shall maintain accounting records according to good accounting practices, consistently applied, which shall be open to inspection by all Members or their authorized representatives at a reasonable time. Financial statements of the Association shall be prepared within sixty (60) days after the close of the fiscal year, and shall, upon written request, be supplied at least annually to all Members or their authorized representatives at no charge to the Members. Such records shall include, but are not limited to, a record of all receipts and expenditures, the beginning and ending cash balances, and an account for each Owner which shall designate the name and address of the Owner, the amount of each Assessment, the due dates and amounts of the Assessments, the amounts paid upon the account and the balance due

ARTICLE III. OFFICERS

Section 1 <u>Executive Officers</u> The executive officers of the Association shall be a President, Vice President, Treasurer and Secretary, all of whom shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors Any two (2) of said offices may be united in one (1) person, except that the President shall not also be the Secretary of the Association The President, Secretary and Treasurer of the Association must, at all times after Class A Members are entitled to elect a majority of the Board of Directors, be Resident Owners (The term "Resident Owner" shall, for this purpose, mean an Owner who personally occupies his Residence for a minimum of 183 days of the calendar year or whose parent, spouse or child occupies the Residence for said period of time) If the Board of Directors so determines, there may be one or more Vice Presidents

Section 2 Subordinate Officers The Board of Directors may appoint such other officers and agents as it may deem necessary, who shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board of Directors and who shall have such authority and perform such duties as from time to time may be prescribed by said Board

Section 3 <u>Tenure of Officers: Removal</u> All officers and agents shall be subject to removal, with or without cause, at any time by action of the Board of Directors. In the event that any officer fails to pay any Assessment levied by the Board of Directors, whether regular or

special Assessment, within thirty (30) days of its due date, said officer shall automatically be removed from office and the Board of Directors shall appoint a successor

Section 4 The President.

A The President shall be chairman of, and shall preside at, all meetings of the Members and Directors, shall have general and active management authority over the business of the Association, except that which is delegated, shall see that all orders and resolutions of the Board of Directors are carried into effect, and shall execute bonds, mortgages and other contracts requiring a seal of the Association The seal, when affixed, shall be attested by the signature of the Secretary

- B He shall supervise and direct all other officers of the Association and shall see that their duties are performed properly
- C He shall submit a report of the operations of the Association for the fiscal year to the Directors (whenever called for by them) and to the Members at their annual meeting, and from time to time shall report to the Board of Directors all matters within his knowledge which the best interests of the Association may require be brought to its notice
- D He shall have the general powers and duties of supervision and management usually vested in the office of the President of a corporation
- Section 5 The Vice President The Vice President shall be vested with all the powers and be required to perform all the duties of the President in his absence, together with such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or the President

Section 6 The Secretary.

A The Secretary shall keep the minutes of meetings of the Members and of the Board of Directors in one (1) or more books provided for that purpose. The minute book shall be available for inspection at any reasonable time, by all Members, or their authorized representatives, and by the Board of Directors. The minutes shall be retained for a period of not less than seven (7) years.

- B He shall see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws, the Articles or as otherwise required by law
- C He shall be the custodian of all corporate records including those described in §720 303(4) of the Florida Statutes, as amended, and of the seal of the Association and shall see that the seal of the Association is affixed to all documents, the execution of which, on behalf of the Association, under its seal, is duly authorized in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws
- D He shall keep a register of the post office address of each Member, which shall be furnished to the Secretary by such Member

E In general, he shall perform all duties incident to the office of the Secretary and other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the President or by the Board of Directors

Section 7 The Treasurer.

- A The Treasurer shall cause the Association to keep full and accurate accounts of receipts and disbursements in books belonging to the Association, and shall deposit all monies and other valuable effects in the name and to the credit of the Association in such depositories as may be designated by the Board of Directors
- B He shall disburse the funds of the Association as authorized by the Board of Directors, taking proper vouchers for such disbursement, and shall render to the President and Directors, at the regular meeting of the Board of Directors, or whenever they may require it, an account of all his transactions as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the Association
- C He may be required to give the Association a bond in a sum and with one (1) or more sureties satisfactory to the Board of Directors for the faithful performance of the duties of his office and the restoration to the Association, in case of his death, resignation or removal from office, of all books, papers, vouchers, money or other property of whatever kind in his possession belonging to the Association If such bond should be required, the Association shall pay the premium thereon
- D He shall prepare and deliver the annual budget and financial statements and, at such times as may be required by law or otherwise determined by the Board of Directors, shall arrange for audits or reviews of the Association's books by outside accountants
- Section 8 <u>Vacancies</u> If the office of the President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer or any other office established by the Board of Directors becomes vacant by reason of death, resignation, disqualification or otherwise, the Directors, by a majority vote of the Board of Directors, may choose a successor or successors who shall hold office for the unexpired portion of the term of the vacated office
- Section 9 Resignations. Any Director or officer may resign his office at any time, in writing, which resignation shall take effect from time of its receipt by the Association, unless some later time be fixed in the resignation, and then from that date. The acceptance of a resignation shall not be required to make it effective
- Section 10 <u>Committees</u> The Board of Directors may appoint one or more executive or other committees whose duties and responsibilities shall be determined from time to time by the Board of Directors

ARTICLE IV. MEMBERSHIP

- Section 1 <u>Membership</u> Each Owner (including a corporate owner and Declarant when an Owner) of a Lot within the Property shall be a Member of the Association and membership in the Association shall be limited to Owners of Lots within the Property
- Section 2 <u>Transfer of Membership and Ownership</u> Membership in the Association may be transferred only as an incident to the transfer of the transferor stransferor to the transfer of the transferor in the
- Section 3 <u>Powers and Duties</u> The powers and duties of the Association shall include those set forth in the various provisions of the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws

ARTICLE V. MEETINGS OF MEMBERSHIP

Section 1 Place All meetings of the Association membership shall be held at such place as may be stated in the notice of the meeting

Section 2 Annual Meeting.

- A The first annual meeting of Members shall be held during the first two weeks in March of the year following the issuance of the first certificate of occupancy for a Residence within the Property
- B Regular annual meetings subsequent to the first meeting shall be held during the first two weeks of every March
- C At the annual meetings, subject to the provisions of Article II, Section 1, of these Bylaws, the Class A Members, by majority vote (cumulative voting prohibited), shall elect a Board of Directors and transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting
- D When a quorum is present at any annual meeting, a majority of the Class A and Class B Member votes cast in person or represented by written proxy, shall decide any question properly brought before the meeting, unless the question is one which, by express provision of the Florida Statutes or Governing Documents, requires a different vote, in which case such express provision shall govern and control the decision of such question
- E Written notice of the annual meeting shall be personally served upon or mailed to each Member entitled to vote at such address as appears on the books of the Association, at least fourteen (14) days prior to the meeting. A duly executed and acknowledged affidavit of an officer of the Association affirming that notices of the meeting were mailed or hand delivered, in accordance with this paragraph, shall be proof of such mailing, and shall be

retained as part of the official records of the Association A notice of such meeting shall be posted at a conspicuous place on the Property at least fourteen (14) days prior to the meeting

Section 3 <u>Membership List</u> At least fourteen (14) days before every election of Directors, a complete list of Members entitled to vote at said election, with the mailing address of each Member, shall be prepared by the Secretary Such list shall be produced and kept for said fourteen (14) days and throughout the election at the office of the Association and shall be open to examination by any Member throughout such time

Section 4 Special Meetings.

A Except as otherwise provided in the Articles, special meetings of the Members, for any purpose or purposes, unless otherwise prescribed by statute or by the Articles of Incorporation, may be called by the President, and shall be called by the President or Secretary at the request, in writing, of ten percent (10%) of the Members or a majority of the members of the Board of Directors Should the President fail to call such a special meeting, such Members may, in lieu thereof, call such meeting. Such request shall state the purpose or purposes of the proposed meeting.

B Except as otherwise provided in the Articles, written notice of a special meeting of Members stating the time, place and object thereof shall be served upon or mailed to each Member entitled to vote thereon at such address as it appears on the books of the Association at least five (5) days before such meeting A notice of such meeting shall be posted at a conspicuous place on the Property at least five (5) days prior to the meeting

C Business transacted at all special meetings shall be confined to the objects stated in the notice thereof

D Except as otherwise provided in the Articles or these Bylaws, when a quorum is present at any special meeting, two-thirds (2/3) of the votes cast in person or represented by written proxy or a majority of all Members, whichever is less, shall decide any question properly brought before the meeting

Section 5 **Quorum.** Members owning thirty percent (30%) of the Membership Interests entitled to vote, present in person or represented by written proxy, shall be requisite to and shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the Members for the transaction of business, except as otherwise provided by statute, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws If, however, such quorum shall not be present or represented at any meeting of the Members, the Members entitled to vote thereat, present in person or represented by written proxy, shall have the power to adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present or represented. At such adjourned meeting at which a quorum shall be present or, represented, any business may be transacted which might have been transacted at the meeting originally called

Section 6 Right to Vote.

A The Association shall have two (2) classes of voting Members

(1) <u>Class A</u> Each Lot Owner shall be a Class A Member The Owner or Owners of a Lot shall be entitled to one (1) vote for each Lot owned If a Lot is owned by more than one (1) individual or by a corporation or other entity, said Owners, corporation or other entity shall file a certificate with the Secretary naming the person or persons authorized to cast said Lot vote, any one of whom may vote at any meeting on behalf of the Lot If the same is not on file prior to any meeting of the Members, then any one individual or any authorized officer may cast said Lot vote Notwithstanding the above, if (1) no certificate of designation is on file, and all Owners of a Lot are present, either in person or by proxy, and cast their votes unanimously, or (11) all those designated in the certificate to vote on behalf of the Lot are present, either in person or by proxy, and cast their vote, unanimously, then said votes shall be counted and considered as one vote for each Lot so owned

(2) <u>Class B</u> The Declarant, or its successors or assigns, shall be the Class B Member (also a "Member") The Class B membership shall terminate and convert to Class A membership on the earlier of the occurrence of one of the following events (the "Termination Date"),

(1) the Declarant so elects by written notice to the

Association, or

(11) one (1) month after Declarant has conveyed seventy five percent (75%) of all Lots to Members other than builders, contractors, or others who purchase Lots for the purpose of constructing improvements thereon for sale, or,

(111) January 1, 2006

(3) Prior to the Termination Date, the Class B Member shall be entitled to three (3) votes for each Lot it owns Except as otherwise provided in the Governing Documents or under applicable Florida law, a majority (more than fifty percent (50%)) of the Class A and Class B Member votes cast in person or represented by written proxy, shall decide any question properly brought before a special or annual meeting of the Members

B All proxies must be in writing, signed by the voting Member granting the proxy and filed with the Secretary prior to the meeting, annual or special, for which said proxy is granted. Each proxy shall specifically set forth the name of the person voting by proxy and the name of the person authorized to vote the proxy for him. Each proxy shall contain the date, time and place of the meeting for which the proxy is given, and if a limited proxy, set forth those items which the holder of the proxy may vote, and the manner in which the vote is cast. The proxy shall be valid only for such meeting or meetings subsequently held pursuant to an adjournment of that meeting. Proxies may be given only to a voting Member.

Section 7 Waiver and Consent. Whenever the vote of Members at a meeting is required or permitted by any provision of the Florida Statutes, the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws in connection with any action of the Association, the meeting and vote of Members may be dispensed with if all Members who would have been entitled to vote upon the action of such meeting if such meeting were held shall consent in writing to such action being taken

Section 8 Order of Business. The order of business at annual Members meetings and, as far as practical, at other Members' meetings will be

- A Roll call
- B Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice
- C Reading of minutes of prior meeting
- D Officers' reports
- E Committee reports
- F Elections
- G Unfinished business
- H New business
- I Adjournment

ARTICLE VI. NOTICES

Section 1 <u>Definition</u> Whenever, under the provisions of the Florida Statutes, the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, notice is required to be given to any Director, officer or Member, it shall not be construed to mean only personal notice, but such notice may be given in writing by mail by depositing the same in a post office or letter box in a postpaid, sealed envelope, addressed as appears on the books of the Association. Any such notice and any notice of any meeting of the Members, annual or special, need not be sent by certified mail, except as otherwise provided by statute, the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws or the Declaration

Section 2 Service of Notice - Waiver Whenever any notice is required to be given under the provisions of the Florida Statutes, the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, a waiver thereof, in writing signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed the equivalent thereof A waiver shall not dispense with or lessen the number of Members required for a quorum

Section 3 Address The address for notice to the Association is 5911 Breckennidge Pkwy, Suite H, Tampa, Florida 33610

ARTICLE VII.

FINANCES

Section 1 Fiscal Year The fiscal year shall be the calendar year

Section 2 Checks All checks or demands for money and notes of the Association shall be signed by any two (2) of the following officers President, Vice President, Secretary or

Treasurer, or by such officer or officers or such other person or persons as the Board of Directors may from time to time designate

Section 3 <u>Determination of Assessments.</u>

- A (1) The Board of Directors shall fix Assessments adequate to meet the Common Expenses of the Association
- (2) Funds for the payment of Common Expenses shall be assessed against Owners in the proportions or percentages and in the manner provided in the Declaration and said Assessments shall be payable as provided in the Declaration
- (3) The Board of Directors is specifically empowered, on behalf of the Association, to make and collect Assessments and to maintain, repair and replace the Common Areas within the Property
- (4) Special Assessments, which may be required by the Board of Directors, shall be levied and paid in the same manner as provided for in the Declaration
- B When the Board of Directors has determined the amount of any Assessment, excluding the monthly assessment, the Secretary or Treasurer shall mail or present a statement of the Assessment to each of the Owners All Assessments shall be payable to the Association and, upon request, the Secretary or Treasurer shall give a receipt for each payment made

Section 4 Annual Budget.

- A A copy of the Association's proposed annual budget of Common Expenses in a form required under §720 of the Florida Statutes, as amended, shall be mailed to each Owner not less than thirty (30) days prior to the meeting of the Board of Directors at which the budget will be considered together with a notice of that meeting Such meeting of the Board of Directors shall be open to all Owners
- B The Board of Directors may approve annual budgets without the necessity of Owner approval so long as the amount does not exceed one hundred fifteen percent (115%) of the Assessment for the preceding year
- Assessments for the proposed fiscal year exceeding one hundred fifteen percent (115%) of such Assessments for the preceding year, the Board of Directors, upon written application of ten percent (10%) of the Members to the Board of Directors, shall call a special meeting of the Members within thirty (30) days, upon not less than ten (10) days' written notice to each Member. At the special meeting, Members shall consider and enact a budget, the adoption of which shall require a vote of not less than two thirds (2/3) of all Members' votes. The Board of Directors may propose a budget to the Members at a meeting of Members or in writing, and if the budget or proposed budget is approved by a majority of the Members at the meeting or by a majority of all Members in writing, the budget shall be adopted. In determining whether Assessments exceed one hundred fifteen percent (115%) of similar Assessments in prior years,

any authorized provisions for reasonable reserves for repair or replacement of the Property, anticipated expenses by the Association which are not anticipated to be incurred on a regular or annual basis, or Assessments for betterments to the Property shall be excluded from the computation. However, as long as the Declarant is in control of the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors shall not impose an Assessment for any year greater than one hundred fifteen percent (115%) of the prior fiscal or calendar year's Assessment without approval of persons owning a majority of all Lots.

Section 5 Working Capital and Reserve Accounts.

- A The Board of Directors may from time to time establish, as part of the regular Assessment or by special Assessment, an operating capital fund which may be utilized for payment of Common Expenses of the Association in excess of the Assessments collected from Owners on a monthly basis Such assessment shall be made in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Declaration
- B The Board of Directors may establish, as part of the annual budget, reserve accounts for capital expenditures and deferred maintenance for items including, but not limited to, pavement resurfacing. The amount to be reserved shall be computed by means of a formula which is based upon estimated life and estimated replacement cost of each reserve item. However, the Members of the Association may by a majority vote at a duly called meeting of the Association, elect for a fiscal year to provide no reserves or reserves less adequate than required by the above-stated formula
- C The Board of Directors shall have the right to assess Owners to establish a reserve account for the future replacement of or additions to the Common Area and such reserve fund shall be held in trust by the Board or its designated nominee to be used solely for the purpose for which it was established
- Section 6 <u>Limitation on Expenditures</u> After the election by Class A Members of a majority of the Board of Directors any single item of expenditure for the improvement of the Common Areas exceeding Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars (\$25,000 00) shall require the specific approval of a majority of the Class A Members whether or not adoption of the entire budget requires their approval pursuant to Section 4 of this Article VII
- Section 7 <u>Application of Payments and Commingling of Funds</u> All sums collected by the Association from Assessments may be commingled in a single fund or divided into more than one (1) fund as determined by the Board of Directors Notwithstanding the foregoing, sums collected for reserves shall be placed in a separate account from other funds of the Association All Assessments shall be applied as provided herein and in the Declaration
- Section 8 Fidelity Bonds for Officers The Treasurer and all officers who are authorized to sign checks, and all officers and employees of the Association, and any contractor handling or responsible for Association funds shall be bonded in such amount as may be determined by the Board of Directors The premiums on such bond or bonds shall be paid by the Association The bond shall be in an amount sufficient to equal the monies an individual handles or over which he has control via a signatory or a bank account or other depository account, however, notwithstanding the foregoing, any management firm retained by the Association, shall

determine, in its sole discretion, the amount of the bond and who is to be bonded, if any, among its employees

ARTICLE VIII. INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

Section 1 The Association shall indemnify any "person", as defined in the Declaration, who was or is a party or threatened to be made a party, to any threatened, pending or contemplated action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that he is or was a director, employee, officer or agent of the Association, against expenses (including attorney's fees and appellate attorney's fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with such action, suit or proceeding if he acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interest of the Association. The termination of any action, suit or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not, in and of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which he reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interest of the Association, and with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, that he had no reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was unlawful

A To the extent that a Director, officer, employee or agent of the Association is entitled to indemnification by the Association in accordance with this Article, he shall be indemnified against expenses (including attorney's fees and appellate attorney's fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection therewith

B The indemnification provided by this Article shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which those seeking indemnification may be entitled under the laws of the State of Florida, any Bylaw, agreement, vote of Members, or otherwise. As to action taken in an official capacity while holding office, the indemnification provided by this Article shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a Member of the Board, officer, employee or agent and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors and administrators or such person

The Association shall have the power to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a Director, officer, employee or agent of the Association, or is or was serving at the request of the Association as a Director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against any liability asserted against him and incurred by him in any such capacity, or arising out of his status as such, whether or not the Association would have the power to indemnify him against such liability under the provisions of this Article

ARTICLE IX. DEFAULT

Section 1 <u>Delinquent Payment of Assessments</u> If any Assessment is not paid within fifteen (15) days (or such other period of time established by the Board of Directors) after the due date, a late fee of thirty-five dollars (\$35 00) per month (or such greater amount established by the Board of Directors) beginning from the due date until paid in full, may be levied. The Association may, at any time thereafter, bring any action at law against the Owner

personally obligated to pay the same, and/or foreclose a lien against the Lot, or both. The Association shall not be required to begin such action if it believes the best interest of the Association would not be served by doing so. It shall be added to the Assessment of all costs expended in preserving the priority of the lien and all costs and expenses of collection, including attorney's fees and paraprofessional fees, at all level of proceedings, including appeals, collection and bankruptcy. No Owner may waive or otherwise escape liability for the Assessments by non-use of, or the waiver of the right to use the Common Areas or by abandonment of the Lot.

Section 2 <u>Non-Monetary Defaults</u> In the event of a violation of any Member or Owner (other than the nonpayment of any Assessments or other monies) of any of the provisions of the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws, or any restriction set forth by the Association, the Association shall notify the Member or Owner of the violation by written notice If the violation is not cured as soon as practicable, and in any event, no later than seven (7) days after the receipt of the written notice, or if the Member or Owner fails to commence, within said seven (7) day period, and diligently proceed to completely cure the violation, the Association may, at its option

A Specific Performance Commence an action to enforce the performance on the part of the Member or Owner, or for such equitable relief as may be necessary under the circumstances, including injunctive relief, and/or

B Damages Commence any action to recover damages, and/or

C Corrective Action Take any and all action reasonably necessary to correct such violation, which action may include, without limitation, removing any buildings or improvements for which architectural approval has not been obtained, or perform any maintenance required to be performed by the Governing Documents, including the right to enter upon the Lot to make such corrections or modifications as are necessary, or remove anything in violation of the provisions of the Governing Document, or any restrictions set forth by the Board of Directors

All expenses incurred by the Association in connection with the correction of any violation, or the commencement of any action against any Owner, including administrative fees and costs and reasonable attorney's fees and disbursements through the appellate level, shall be a Specific Assessment, as defined in the Declaration, assessed against the applicable Owner, and shall be due upon written demand by the Association

Any amount due to Declarant or the Association which is not paid within fifteen (15) days after the due date shall bear a late fee of thirty-five dollars (\$35 00) and interest at a rate of ten percent (10%) per annum. The Association may bring an action at law against the Owner personally obligated to pay the same, or foreclose the lien against the Owner's Lot.

Section 3 <u>Consent</u> Each Owner, for himself, his heirs, successors and assigns, agrees to the foregoing provisions regardless of the harshness of the remedy available to the Association and regardless of the availability of any other equally adequate procedures. It is the intent of all Owners to give to the Association such powers and authority which will enable it to operate on a

business-like basis, to collect those monies due and owing to it from Owners, and to preserve each Owner's right to enjoy his Lot or Residence free from unreasonable restraint and nuisance

<u>ARTICLE X.</u> OBLIGATIONS OF MEMBERS

In addition to other obligations and duties set out in the Declaration and subject to any other provisions set forth therein and in the Article's of Incorporation of the Association, these Bylaws and the Rules and Regulations adopted pursuant to these Bylaws, each Member of the Association shall

- Section 1 Residence Occupancy Use or permit his Residence to be used exclusively for residential purposes by himself, approved lessees, family members and guests
- Section 2 <u>Assessments</u> Promptly pay any and all Assessments levied against him by the Association
- Section 3 Conformity with Declarations and Articles of Incorporation Neither use nor permit the use of his Lot or Residence for any purpose other than as permitted by the Declaration and in conformity with the Articles of Incorporation of the Association
- Section 4 <u>Conformity with Bylaws and Rules and Regulations</u> Conform to and abide by the Bylaws and Rules and Regulations of the Association which may be adopted in writing from time to time by the Board of Directors of the Association or its designee relative to the Lots, the Residences, the Common Areas or the use thereof
- Section 5 <u>Compliance with Laws</u> Comply with all laws, orders, codes, and regulations of federal, state, county, municipal and other governmental authorities relative to the operation or use of his Lot or Residence
- Section 6 <u>Nuisance</u> Neither use nor permit the use of his Residence, Lot or the Common Areas in any manner which will be disturbing or be a nuisance to other Owners, or in any way be injurious to the reputation of Country Chase

ARTICLE XI. AMENDMENT

- A These Bylaws may be amended by affirmative vote of fifty percent (50%) of the total votes of the Association membership (not just those voting) except that no Amendment to these Bylaws shall be effective which would contravene the Declaration or the Articles of Incorporation of the Association
- B No amendment to the Bylaws shall be passed without the consent or joinder of the Declarant so long as Declarant remains a Class B Member in the Association
- C No amendment to the Bylaws shall be passed which would operate to impair or prejudice the rights or liabilities of any Institutional Lender holding a lien upon a Lot or Residence

D No Bylaw shall be revised or amended by reference to its title or number only Proposals to amend existing Bylaws shall contain the full text of the Bylaws to be amended, new words shall be inserted in the text underlined, and the words to be deleted shall be lined through with hyphens. However, if the proposed change is so extensive that this procedure would hinder, rather than assist, the understanding of the proposed amendment, it is not necessary to use underlining and hyphens as indicators of words added or deleted, but, instead, a notation must be inserted immediately preceding the proposed amendment in substantially the following language, "Substantial rewording of Bylaw See Bylaw ______ for present text" Nonmaterial errors or omissions in the Bylaw process shall not invalidate an otherwise properly promulgated amendment

E As long as there is a Class B Membership, and so long as the Department of Housing and Urban Development or Veteran's Administration is holding, insuring, or guaranteeing any loan secured by property subject to the Governing Documents (as defined in the Declaration), any amendment to these Bylaws shall require the approval of the Department of Housing and Urban Development or the Veteran's Administration

ARTICLE XII CONSTRUCTION

Wherever the masculine singular form of the pronoun is used in these Bylaws, it shall be construed to include the masculine, feminine or neuter, singular or plural, wherever the context so requires. Should any of the provisions of these Bylaws be void or be or become unenforceable at law or in equity, the remaining provisions of this instrument shall nevertheless be and remain in full force and effect. Wherever possible, these Bylaws shall be construed consistently with Florida law, the Declaration, and the Articles of Incorporation. However, in the event of any conflict or inconsistency the provisions of Florida law, the Declaration and Articles of Incorporation shall govern and these Bylaws shall be given effect to the extent not inconsistent therewith.

OR BK 11551 PG 1557

The foregoing were adopted as the Bylaws of Hamilton Park Homeowners Association, Inc. at
the first meeting of its Board of Directors
Dated 4 10/02
Jeffrey Kling, Secretary
STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF HILLSBOROUGH
IBTH APPL
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this the day of March,
2001, by JEFFREY KING, as registered agent, who is personally known to me
WWW. as registered agent, who is personally known to life
Name ALFRED J. Kesser
My Commission Expires AUG 14, 2005 Notary Public
ALFRED J KESLER
Notary Public State of Florida My Commission Expires Aug 14, 2005
Commission # CC671789

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

OF

HAMILTON PARK HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. (A Corporation Not-For-Profit)

ARTICLE I

NAME OF CORPORATION

In compliance with the requirements of the laws of the State of Florida, the undersigned, as incorporator hereby executes these Articles of Incorporation for the purpose of forming a corporation not-for-profit under Chapter 617, Florida Statutes, as follows:

The name of this corporation shall be HAMILTON PARK HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., hereinafter in these Articles referred to as the "Association", and its principal place of business shall be 5911 Breckenridge Pkwy., Suite H, Tampa, Florida 33610.

ARTICLE II

PURPOSES

The general nature, objects, and purposes of the Association are:

- (A) To promote the health, safety, and social welfare of the owners of all lots located within Hamilton Park, a subdivision in Hillsborough County, Florida (the "Subdivision"), being developed by Beazer Homes Corp., a Tennessee corporation, (the "Declarant");
- (B) To maintain all portions of the Subdivision and improvements thereon for which the obligation to maintain and repair has been delegated to the Association by the "Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions of Hamilton Park (the "Declaration"), which is to be recorded in the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida, as amended; and
 - (C) To operate without profit and for the sole and exclusive benefit of its members.

ARTICLE III

GENERAL POWERS

The general powers that the Association shall have are as follows:

- (A) To purchase, accept, lease, or otherwise acquire title to, and to hold, mortgage, rent, sell or otherwise dispose of, any and all real or personal property related to the purposes or activities of the Association; to make, enter into, perform, and carry out contracts of every kind and nature with any person, firm, corporation, or association; and to do any other acts necessary or expedient for carrying on any of the activities of the Association and pursuing any of the objects and purposes set forth in these Articles of Incorporation and not forbidden by the laws of the State of Florida
- (B) To establish a budget and to fix assessments to be levied against all lots which are subject to assessment pursuant to the Declaration for the purpose of defraying the expenses and costs of effectuating the objects and purposes of the Association and to create reasonable reserves for such expenditures, including a reasonable contingency fund for the ensuing year and a reasonable annual reserve for anticipated major capital repairs, maintenance, improvements, and replacements.
- (C) To place hens against any lot subject to assessment for delinquent and unpaid assessments or charges and to bring suit for the foreclosure of such liens or to otherwise enforce the collection of such assessments and charges for the purpose of obtaining revenue in order to carry out the purposes and objectives of the Association.
- (D) To hold funds solely and exclusively for the benefit of the Members of the Association for the purposes set forth in these Articles of Incorporation and the Declaration.
- (E) To adopt, promulgate, and enforce rules, regulations, bylaws, covenants, restrictions, and agreements in order to effectuate the purposes of which the Association is organized.

- (F) To delegate such of the powers of the Association as may be deemed to be in the Association's best interest by the Board of Directors
- (G) To charge recipients of services rendered by the Association and users of property of the Association where such is deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors.
- (H) To pay all taxes and other charges or assessments, if any, levied against property owned, leased, or used by the Association
- (I) To enforce, by any and all lawful means, the provisions of these Articles of Incorporation, the Bylaws of the Association which may be hereafter adopted, and the terms and provisions of the Declaration (all such documents being sometimes hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Governing Documents").
- (J) In general, to have all powers which may be conferred upon a corporation not for profit by the laws of the State of Florida, except as may otherwise be prohibited herein.

ARTICLE IV

MEMBERSHIP

- (A) The "Members" of this Association shall consist of all Owners of lots in the Subdivision, including Declarant when an Owner. An "Owner" shall mean and refer to the record owner, whether one or more persons or entities, of a fee simple title to any lot and which is part of the Property, including contract sellers, but excluding those having such interest merely as security for the performance of an obligation. Owners of such lots shall automatically become Members upon acquisition of the fee simple title to their respective lots.
- (B) The membership of any Member in the Association shall automatically terminate upon conveyance or other divestment of title to such Member's lot, except that nothing herein

OR BK 11551 PG 1561

H010001230969

contained shall be construed as terminating the membership of any Member who may own two (2) or more lots so long as Member owns at least one (1) lot

The interest of a Member in the funds and assets of the Association may not be assigned, hypothecated, or transferred in any manner, except as an appurtenance to the lot which is the basis of his membership in the Association.

- (C) Each and every Member shall be entitled to the benefits of membership in the Association and shall be bound to abide by the provisions of the Governing Documents
- (D) The Secretary of the Association shall maintain a list of the Members of the Association. Whenever any person or entity becomes entitled to membership in the Association, it shall become such party's duty and obligation to so inform the Secretary in writing, giving his name, address and lot number; provided, however, that any notice given to or vote accepted from the prior Owner of such lot before receipt of written notification of change of ownership shall be deemed to be properly given or received. The Secretary may, but shall not be required to, search the Public Records of Hillsborough County or make other inquiry to determine the status and correctness of the list of Members of the Association maintained by him and shall be entitled to rely upon the Association's records until notified in writing of any change in ownership.

ARTICLE V

VOTING RIGHTS

The Association shall have two (2) classes of voting Members

(A) <u>Class A</u>: Each lot Owner shall be a Class A Member. The Owner or Owners of a lot shall be entitled to one (1) vote for each lot owned. If a lot is owned by more than one (1) individual or by a corporation or other entity, said Owners, corporation or other entity shall file a certificate with the Secretary naming the person or persons authorized to cast said lot vote, any one

of whom may vote at any meeting on behalf of the lot If the same is not on file prior to any meeting of the Members, then any one individual or any authorized officer may cast said lot vote. The vote for any lot shall be exercised by a majority of all Members owning as lot as they may determine, but in event shall more than one (1) vote be cast with respect to any lot.

- (B) <u>Class B</u>: The Declarant, or its successors or assigns, shall be the Class B Member. The Class B membership shall cease and convert to a Class A membership on the happening of any of the following events, whichever occurs earlier (the "Termination Date").
- (1) the total votes outstanding in the Class A membership equals the total votes outstanding in the Class B membership; or
 - (2) the date exactly fifteen (15) years after the recording of this Declaration, or
- (3) the Declarant may elect to convert some or all of its Class B membership to Class A membership upon thirty (30) days written notice to the Board (whereupon the Class A Members shall be obligated to elect the Board and assume control of the Association).

Provided, however, in the event additional lots are added to the Association by annexation pursuant to the terms and conditions contained in the Declaration after the Class B membership shall cease under sub-paragraph (1) above, the Class B membership and voting rights shall be immediately reinstated and resumed, and shall continue until the subsequent occurrence of one of the above events.

Prior to the Termination Date, the Class B Member shall be entitled to three (3) votes for each lot it owns in the Subdivision. Except as otherwise provided in the Governing Documents or under applicable Florida law, a majority (more than fifty percent (50%)) of the Class A and Class B Member votes (one (1) vote per lot) cast in person or represented by written proxy, shall decide any question properly brought before a special or annual meeting of the Members

ARTICLE VI

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- (A) The affairs of the Association shall be managed by a Board of Directors consisting initially of three (3) Directors The number of Directors comprising succeeding Boards of Directors shall be as provided from time to time in the Bylaws of the Association, but in no event shall there be less than three (3) nor more than nine (9) Directors. The Directors need not be Members of the Association nor residents of the State of Florida.
- (B) All Directors shall be appointed by and shall serve at the pleasure of Declarant until the Termination Date at which time the Declarant shall continue to be entitled to appoint at least one (1) member of the Board of Directors until such time as the Declarant holds less than five percent (5%) of the lots for sale in the ordinary course of business in the Subdivision.
- (C) All Directors who are not subject to appointment by Declarant shall be elected by the Members. Elections shall be by plurality vote.
- (D) Except as hereinafter provided, the term of each elected Director shall expire upon the election of his successor at the next succeeding annual meeting of Members Commencing with the first annual meeting that either follows or constitutes the "turnover" meeting, all Directors elected by the Members shall be elected on a staggered two-year-term basis. Accordingly, at such meeting, the one-half of the elected Directors receiving the highest number of votes, and, in addition, if there are an odd number of Directors elected, the Director receiving the next highest number of votes, shall serve two year terms, and the other elected Directors shall serve one-year terms. At each annual meeting of Members thereafter, Directors shall be elected for two-year terms to fill the vacancies of those Directors whose terms are then expiring. In the event additional Directors are elected at an annual meeting to fill new directorships created by expansion of the Board, such

H010001230969

Directors shall be elected, in the manner set forth above, for one or two year terms as may be appropriate to make even, or as nearly even as possible, the number of Directors serving one and two year terms. Each elected Director shall serve until his respective successor has been duly elected and qualified, or until his earlier resignation, removal or death.

- (E) Any elected Director may be removed from office with or without cause by majority vote of the Members, but not otherwise. In the event of the death, resignation or removal of an elected director; his successor shall be elected by the remaining Directors and such successor shall serve the unexpired term of his predecessor. Any appointed Director may be removed and replaced with or without cause by Declarant, in Declarant's sole and absolute discretion
- (F) The names and addresses of the persons constituting the initial Board of Directors, who shall serve until their successors are elected or appointed and have qualified, or until removed, are as follows.

Devon Rushnell 5911 Breckenridge Pkwy., Suite H Tampa, Florida 33610 Christin Cupp 5911 Breckenridge Pkwy, Suite H Tampa, Florida 33610

Matt McGirr 5911 Breckenridge Pkwy, Suite H Tampa, Florida 33610

ARTICLE VII

OFFICERS

The officers of the Association, to be elected by the Board of Directors, shall be a President, a Vice-President, a Secretary, and a Treasurer, and such other officers as the Board shall deem appropriate from time to time. The same person may hold two or more offices; provided, however, the office of President and Secretary shall not be held by the same person. The affairs of the Association shall be administered by such officers under the direction of the Board of Directors

ARTICLE VIII

CORPORATE EXISTENCE

The Association shall commence upon the filing of these Articles and shall have perpetual existence

ARTICLE IX

BYLAWS

The first Board of Directors of the Association shall adopt Bylaws consistent with these Articles. Such Bylaws shall be attached to the Declaration and filed with the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida. Thereafter, the Bylaws may be altered, amended or rescinded by a majority vote of the Directors in the manner provided by such Bylaws.

ARTICLE X

AMENDMENTS TO ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

(A) Proposals for amendments to these Articles of Incorporation which do not conflict with the Declaration may be made by a majority vote of the Board of Directors or by fifteen percent (15%) of the Members. Such proposals shall be in writing, shall describe the proposed amendment, and shall be delivered to the President of the Association who shall thereupon call a special meeting of the Members not less than ten (10) days nor more than sixty (60) days following his receipt of the proposed amendment. Should the President fail to call such special meeting, the Members may, in lieu thereof, call a special meeting. Notice of such special meeting shall be given and posted in the manner provided in the Bylaws. An affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the total votes of the Association membership (not just those voting) shall be required for approval of the proposed amendment or amendments. Moreover, no amendment affecting the rights of Declarant shall be

effective as long as there is a Class B Member without the prior written consent of such Class B Member.

(B) Any Member may waive the requirements of this Article as to the notice of special meetings to vote on proposed amendments to these Articles of Incorporation, either before, at or after a membership meeting at which a vote is taken to amend these Articles Any amendment not requiring the written consent of Declarant which has passed by two-thirds (2/3) of the total votes of the Association membership shall not be invalid merely because some Members did not receive notice of the special meeting.

ARTICLE XI

REGISTERED OFFICE AND REGISTERED AGENT

The registered office of the Association shall be at 1819 Main Street, Suite 610, Sarasota, Florida, and the registered agent at such address shall be Peter Z Skokos. The Association may, however, maintain offices and transact business in such other places within or without the State of Florida as may from time to time be designated by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE XII

BUDGET AND EXPENDITURES

The Association shall obtain funds with which to operate by assessment of its Members in accordance with the provisions of the Declaration, as the same may be supplemented by the provisions of the Association's Articles and Bylaws. Accordingly, the Board of Directors shall annually adopt a budget for the operation of the Association for the ensuing fiscal year and for the purpose of levying assessments against all lots subject to assessment, which budget shall be conclusive and binding upon all persons; provided, however, that the Board of Directors may

H010001230969 OR BK 11551 PG 1567

thereafter, at any time, approve or ratify variations from such budget. Such budget shall be in a form required under §720 of the Florida Statutes, as amended

ARTICLE XIII

SUBSCRIBER

The name and street address of the subscriber of these Articles is as follows: Peter Z. Skokos, Norton, Gurley, Hammersley & Lopez, P.A., 1819 Main Street, Suite 610, Sarasota, Florida 34236

ARTICLE XIV

INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

The Association shall indemnify any "person", as defined in the Declaration, who was or is a party or threatened to be made a party, to any threatened, pending or contemplated action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that he is or was a director, employee, officer or agent of the Association, against expenses (including attorney's fees and appellate attorney's fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with such action, suit or proceeding if he acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interest of the Association. The termination of any action, suit or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not, in and of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which he reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interest of the Association; and with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, that he had no reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was unlawful.

(A) To the extent that a Director, officer, employee or agent of the Association is entitled to indemnification by the Association in accordance with this Article, he shall be indemnified against

expenses (including attorney's fees and appellate attorney's fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection therewith.

- (B) The indemnification provided by this Article shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which those seeking indemnification may be entitled under the laws of the State of Florida, any Bylaw, agreement, vote of Members, or otherwise. As to action taken in an official capacity while holding office, the indemnification provided by this Article shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a Member of the Board, officer, employee or agent and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors and administrators or such person.
- (C) The Association shall have the power to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a Director, officer, employee or agent of the Association, or is or was serving at the request of the Association as a Director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against any liability asserted against him and incurred by him in any such capacity, or arising out of his status as such, whether or not the Association would have the power to indemnify him against such liability under the provisions of this Article.

ARTICLE XV

DISSOLUTION OF THE ASSOCIATION

(A) Upon expiration of the term of the Declaration, the Association may be dissolved upon a resolution to that effect being approved by the holders of two-thirds (2/3) of the total votes of the Association membership (not just those voting), and upon compliance with any applicable laws then in effect.

- (B) Upon dissolution of the Association, all of its assets remaining after provision for payment of creditors and all costs and expenses of such dissolution shall be distributed in the following manner
- (1) Any property determined by the Board of Directors of the Association to be appropriate for dedication to any applicable municipal or other governmental authority may be dedicated to such authority provided the authority is willing to accept the dedication.
- (2) Except as may be otherwise provided by the terms of the Governing Documents, all remaining assets shall be dedicated to a successor or similar not-for-profit organization.

ARTICLE XVI

BINDING EFFECT

The provisions hereof shall bind and inure to the benefit of the Members and Declarant and their respective successors and assigns.

ARTICLE XVII

TRANSACTIONS IN WHICH DIRECTORS OR OFFICERS ARE INTERESTED

No contract or transaction between the Association and one or more of its Directors or officers, or between the Association and any other corporation, partnership, association, or any other organization in which one or more of its Directors or officers are directors or officers or have a financial interest, shall be invalid, void or voidable, solely for this reason, or solely because the Officer or Director is present at, or participated in, meetings of the Board or committee thereof, which authorized the contract or transaction, or solely because said officers or Directors votes are counted for such purpose. No Director or officer of the Association shall incur liability by reason of the fact that the Director or officer may be interested in any such contract or transaction.

OR BK 11551 PG 1570

H010001230969

Interested Directors may be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at a meeting of the Board or of a committee which authorizes the contract or transaction

ARTICLE XVIII

HUD/VA APPROVAL

As long as there is a Class B Membership, and so long as the Department of Housing and Urban Development or Veteran's Administration is holding, insuring, or guaranteeing any loan secured by property subject to the Governing Documents, the following actions will require the approval of the Department of Housing and Urban Development or the Veteran's Administration annexation of additional properties; merger, consolidation or mortgage of Common Area, dissolution of the Association; or, amendment to these Articles in accordance with Article X.

ARTICLE XIX

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- (A) Whenever used herein, the singular number shall include the plural and the plural the singular, and the use of any gender shall include all genders.
- (B) In the event of any conflict between the provisions of these Articles and the provisions of the Declaration, the provisions of the Declaration shall prevail

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above-named subscriber has hereunto set his hand and seal

this 20 day of December, 2001

PETER Z. SKOKOS

H010001230969

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF SARASOTA

December, 2004, by PETER Z SK	was acknowledged before me this <u>20</u> day of OKOS as Subscriber of HAMILTON PARK
HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION; INC., CHRISTINE STOCKTON	on behalf of the Association, who is personally known
to me. MY COMMISS' * DD 002736 EXPIRE 1005	
1-800-3-NOTARY FL.Nk. nding, Inc.	Christine Mattechton
	Name:
My Commission Expires:	Notary Public
ACCEPTANCE O	F REGISTERED AGENT
Having been named Registered Age	nt to accept service of process for the above stated
corporation at registered office designated in th	ne Articles, I hereby accept such designation and agree
to serve as Registered Agent	
	Litter All
	PETER Z. SKOKOS
STATE OF FLORIDA	
COUNTY OF SARASOTA	
. The foregoing instrument w	as acknowledged before me this 20 day of
December, 2001, by PETER Z SKOKO	S, as registered agent, who is personally known to me.
SURY NE CHOICTING IN THE	
MY COMMISSION # DD 002736	Christmen Stockton
1-800-3-NOTARY FL Notary Service & Bonding, Inc.	
	Name
My Commission Expires:	Notary Public

H \APPS\wp80\4080\Hamilton Park\Articles of Inc wpd